
 

 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, April 19, 2016 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – APRIL 19, 2016 - 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Alan Weiner - Vice Chairman; Derwin Bright - Trustee; 
Karl Craig - Trustee; Steve Kenny - Trustee; Julio Muniz - Trustee; Sonya Little - Chief 
Financial Officer 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske - 
Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams - Accounting 
Operations Manager;  Deborah Hodo - Pension Reporting Accountant;  Rosie Santos 
- Pension Relationship Accountant;  Tammy Shaw - Accounting Technician I 

 

Consultants:  Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk- Asset Consulting Group;  Stephen Lambert Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite - AON/Hewitt 

 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 April 19, 2016, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to 
the date of the meeting. 

 

Page Numbers 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Public Comments -  Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

1) Minutes for Special Call Meeting on March 10, 2016 (Motion) .......................................... 4 - 5 
2) Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on March 15, 2016 (Motion) ................................... 6 - 13 
3) Minutes for Forfeiture Hearing on March 29, 2016 (Motion) ......................................... 14 - 15 
 

IV. Fiduciary Liability Insurance Policy Renewal (Motion) ...................................................... Handout 
 

V. Disability Retirement Hearings 
a) Ethelda Oliver (Motion) ................................................................................................ Handout 
b) Job Yulee (Motion) ........................................................................................................ Handout 

 
VI. Staff Report 

1) Small Cap Value Manager Presentations (Motion) ...................................................... Handouts 
a) Integrity 

Dan Bandi, CFA - Chief Investment Officer, Lead Portfolio Manager 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 1 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY – APRIL 19, 2016  
 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 
Mike Thistleton - Managing Director, Institutional Markets 
 

b) River Road  
R. Andrew Beck – President & CEO, Senior Portfolio Manager 
L. Michele Robbins – Vice President, Client & Consultant Relations 

 
c) LMCG 
R. Todd Vingers, CFA – Managing Director, Lead Portfolio Manager 
Tom Capobianco – Director, Public Fund Marketing 
 

2) March 2016 Performance Report – ACG .......................................................................... 16 - 20 
3) Q3 FY16 Cash Flow Projection (Motion) .......................................................................... 21 - 22 
4) Fisher Investments Update ..................................................................................................... 23 
5) Long Wharf FREG III Distribution - $57,097.90 ....................................................................... 24 
6) Hearing Officer for Forfeitures (Motion) ................................................................... Discussion 
7) Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit 

a) Audit Summary ....................................................................................................... Handout 
b) Audit Policies & Procedures 1st Reading ................................................................. Handout 

8) Overpayment Polices & Procedures 1st Reading ........................................................... Handout 
9) Disability Re-Examination Audit (Motion) ................................................................... Handouts 

 
VII. Old Business 

1) Retirement Education Plan ............................................................................................. Update 
2) Forfeiture Education Plan ................................................................................................ Update 
3) Outstanding Disability Application:  Edwin Cirino ........................................................... Update 
4) Annual Benefit Statements ............................................................................................. Update 

 
VIII. Consent Agenda (Motion) 

 
Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrant, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements,  Disability 
Retirement, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments, Lump Sum Death Benefit……….. ...................... 25 

 
Quarterly Invoices: 

 
1) Asset Consulting Group - #7331 - $31,250.00 ......................................................................... 26 

 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 
 
1) Ford & Harrison - #652037 - $650.00 ...................................................................................... 27 
2) Ford & Harrison - #652039 - $5,428.85 ................................................................................... 28 
3) Ford & Harrison - #652041 - $21.42 ........................................................................................ 29 
4) Ford & Harrison - #652043 - $1,406.50 ................................................................................... 30 
5) Ford & Harrison - #652044 - $810.00 ...................................................................................... 31 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 2 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY – APRIL 19, 2016  
 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

6) Ford & Harrison - #652045 - $1,402.28 ................................................................................... 32 
7) Ford & Harrison - #652046 - $300.00 ...................................................................................... 33 
8) Ford & Harrison - #652047 - $610.00 ...................................................................................... 34 
9) Ford & Harrison - #652048 - $642.50 ...................................................................................... 35 
10) Ford & Harrison - #652049 - $395.00 ...................................................................................... 36 
11) Ford & Harrison - #652050 - $939.53 ...................................................................................... 37 
12) Ford & Harrison - #652051 - $275.00 ...................................................................................... 38 
13) HB Workman Design - #14-231 - $600.00 ............................................................................... 39 
14) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #509701 - $822.50 ........................................................... 40 
15) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #513858 - $315.00 ........................................................... 41 
16) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Job Yulee - $300.00................................................... 42 
17) City of Tampa Reimbursement – (Mar. 12, 2016 – Apr. 14, 2016) - $21,303.64 .................... 43 

 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting Schedule – City Council Chambers: 
Monday, May 16, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. – Forfeiture Hearing 

Tuesday, May 17, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
 

Scheduled Topics for Regular May Board Meeting: 
Real Estate Manager Presentations 
ACG Monthly & Quarterly Reports 

Disability Retirement Hearings  
Retirement Education Plan 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 3 of 43



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

SPECIAL CALL MEETING 
THURSDAY – March 10, 2016 – 3:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees Present: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Julio Muniz- Trustee; Sonya 
Little, Chief Financial Officer; Derwin Bright - Trustee; Steve Kenny - Trustee; Karl 
Craig - Trustee 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu - Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  
  Justin R. Vaske - Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney; Ernest Mueller – Senior 

Assistant City Attorney; Terrie Williams - Accounting Operations Manager; Karencia 
Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III 

 
Location and Time: Old City Hall - Mascotte Room, 1st Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602, 

Thursday, March 10, 2016, 3:00 P.M. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to 
participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to the date of the 
meeting. 

 

 
I. Roll Call       

Members Present:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Julio Muniz, Trustee;  
Sonya Little, Chief Financial Officer; Steve Kenny, Trustee; Derwin Bright, Trustee;  and Karl Craig, 
Trustee.  
 
Let the record reflect these individuals are also present: Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor; 
Justin R. Vaske, Assistant City Attorney; Luis Santos, Independent Counsel from Ford & Harrison; 
Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager; and Karencia Ciagala, OSS III. 
 

II. Special Call Meeting 
Chairman Ernest Carrera brought the meeting to order and explained that the purpose of the 
meeting was to discuss the 2nd District Court of Appeals ruling in regards to Demetrio Rivera’s 
pension forfeiture from the City of Tampa, General Employees Retirement Fund.  Luis Santos was 
introduced as Independent Counsel from Ford & Harrison. 
 
Mr. Santos explained that at present he has not received the final order, but the Court of Appeals has 
ruled that the City of Tampa is to pay Mr. Rivera his pension.  Mr. Santos  explained that the Board’s 
decision was overturned because of hearsay evidence and that the 2nd District Court of Appeals said 
we didn’t put forth the evidence (from victims) to show that he used his City keys when commiting 
the crime. 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 4 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
SPECIAL CALL MEETING 

THURSDAY – MARCH 10, 2016 
 

 
The Board engaged in a discussion of the case and Mr. Santos explained four options for 
consideration on how to proceed in response to the decision made by the 2nd District Court of 
Appeals.   Luis Santos explained the potential  costs and timelines involved with each of the options 
along with the Board’s chances of prevailing.      
 

Sonya Little questioned whether the names of victims would become public record, and was told at 
this time, (if located) the identities would be part of attorney work product and exempt.   
 

Justin Vaske clarified that we (the Board) needed to make a decision and not get in to discussing 
potential strategies.  Julio Muniz asked about potential caps to fees, and Justin Vaske respondedthat 
it might not be workable.   Ernest Carrera stated that he felt we should offer the victims the 
opportunity to come forward.  
 

III. MOTION 
Steve Kenny made the motion to go with the option for Luis Santos to prepare for a second hearing. 
Julio Muniz seconded the motion.    
 

Board discussion:  Sonya Little wanted a clarification that we would not release identity of the 
victims.   
 

Steve Kenny  then changed his motion, to have Luis Santos begin research for a second hearing and 
to determine if we can bring any victims forward.  Karl Craig seconded the motion.  Unanimous vote. 
 

There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 4:31 p.m.  
 

 
 
                  __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR - Natasha Neagu 

& RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 5 of 43



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – MARCH 15, 2016 - 1:00 p.m. 
 

 
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 15th day of March, 2016 in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy 
Blvd, Tampa, FL 33602.   
 
Support Staff:  Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary; Justin Vaske, Assistant 
City Attorney and Board Attorney; Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager; and Karencia 
Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III. 
 

I. ROLL CALL  

 
Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Karl Craig, Trustee; Derwin Bright, Trustee; 
Julio Muniz, Trustee; Sonya Little, Chief Financial Officer.  Board members absent include:  Alan Weiner, 
Vice Chairman and Steve Kenny, Trustee. 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
Tony Gelderman of Bernstein, Litowitz, Berger & Grossman, LLP, introduced himself and Erica Alba of 
Foley Lardner to the Board.  He stated that his firm is a securities litigation firm based out of New Orleans 
and they are reaching to us today in regards to our pension plan.  He provided an overview of his firm 
and services offered.  

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
MOTION: On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Ms. Little, to approve the revised minutes 
from the January 19, 2016 Board meeting.   MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MOTION: On a motion made by Ms. Little, and seconded by Mr. Bright, to approve the minutes from 
the February 16, 2016 Board meeting.   MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MOTION: On a motion made by Mr. Muniz, and seconded by Mr. Craig and Mr. Bright, to approve the 
minutes from the Forfeiture Hearing held on March 1, 2016.  MOTION CARRIED.   
 

IV. MEDICAL DISABILITY HEARINGS 
 

Pension Plan Supervisor, Natasha Neagu brought three disability applications before the Board. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 6 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

1) Timothy Green  

Ms. Neagu updated the Board that Mr. Timothy Green’s disability retirement hearings were initially 
conducted at the April 16, 2013 and May 21, 2013 meetings and provided a summary of his case.    

The Board’s independent medical examiner, Dr. Hughes, recommended denial of Mr. Green’s disability 
retirement application and stated in relevant part “it is my opinion that Mr. Green is at maximum medical 
improvement due to his recent injuries of 2/13/12 and has a partial permanent disability to his lumbar 
spine but could provide a useful service and efficient service for the City of Tampa provided reasonable 
accommodations could be made.”  Based on the documentation received and a review of Mr. Green’s 
prior education and work experience, the HR Department determined that two positions would be within 
the capability of Mr. Green.  The positions are Communications Technician I and Customer Service Clerk I. 

Mr. Green gave testimony before the Board at the April 16, 2013 meeting to address Dr. Hughes’ denial 
recommendation and the choice of open position recommendations.  During that meeting a Board 
discussion ensued about the process the HR Department undertakes to recommend open positions, the 
specific positions recommended for Mr. Green and the disability retirement application process.  Several 
Board members requested to have the City of Tampa Employee Services point person present to the 
Board at the May 21, 2013 meeting.  Mr. Green was advised to provide any additional medical records to 
the General Employees Retirement Fund as soon as possible. 

At the May 21, 2013 Board meeting, Kimberly Crum, Director of Human Resources, reviewed the process 
wherein HR and Employment Services determine the type of City job the disability applicant may be 
capable of providing useful and efficient service.   Mr. Green gave testimony before the Board to address 
Dr. Hughes’ report and the choice of open positions recommended.  He returned due to the Board’s 
encouragement that he provide additional medical information for Dr. Hughes’ review being he was still 
having medical difficulties.  He continued to have confusion as to why he has not been given a permanent 
and total disability rating.  Mr. Green said he has numerous medical files, and said he didn’t provide 
documents which the pension office already had, but he feels the pension office didn’t do a complete 
search for his medical history/documents.  Mr. Goers explained to Mr. Green the Board can only make 
decisions on information provided to them and the onus is on the applicant to provide all documents 
relevant to his case.    Mr. Kenny suggested Mr. Green delay his hearing to make sure Dr. Hughes has all 
the proper facts and paperwork to make a decision.  Mr. Carrera advised that the Board will postpone 
their vote on Mr. Green’s application.  A motion was made by Mr. Kenny and seconded by Mr. Weiner, 
the disability retirement application hearing of Timothy Green is postponed until the July 16, 2013 Board 
meeting.   

Ms. Neagu updated the Board that Mr. Green’s disability retirement hearing was never conducted at the 
July 16, 2013 meeting as planned.   A review of his file indicated that Mr. Green had not provided the 
General Employees Retirement Fund any additional medical records after the May 21, 2013 Board 
meeting.  

Ms. Neagu informed the Board that she sent a letter to Mr. Green on February 5, 2016 which 

summarized his case and the timelines and advised him that the General Employees Retirement Fund has 

not received any additional medical records from him since the May 21, 2013 Board meeting.  The letter 

made a final request for Mr. Green to provide any additional medical records and advised him that his 

disability retirement hearing is scheduled for the March 15, 2016 Board meeting. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 7 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

A second letter was sent to Mr. Green on February 19, 2016 which included copies of the original medical 

report received from Dr. Hughes as well as the report from Mickey Wilson-Skarr with the City of Tampa 

Employment Services Office with the recommended positions.  Both letters were sent via regular and 

certified mail.  No correspondence or communication was received from Mr. Green. 

Based on information provided the staff recommendation is to deny the disability retirement application 
for Mr. Green.  

MOTION:  Julio Muniz made a motion to deny the disability retirement application for Mr. Green; 
seconded by Sonya Little.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

2) Ethelda Oliver   

Natasha Neagu provided a summary of her case and the timelines.   

Comprehensive evaluation/medical reports were received from Dr. Owi and Dr. Hughes on April 11, 2013 
and April 18, 2013, respectively, which opined that Ms. Oliver is partially and permanently disabled but 
she could provide a useful and efficient service provided reasonable accommodations could be made. 

On May 29, 2013, Mark Boghich, previous Pension Plan Supervisor, sent additional medical records for 
Ms. Oliver to Dr. Hughes at Ms. Oliver’s request.  On May 30, 2013, an updated medical opinion was 
received from Dr. Hughes which indicated he reviewed the additional medical reports however his 
medical opinion remained unchanged as no new medical information was included in the additional 
reports he reviewed.   

Ms. Oliver’s disability retirement hearing was originally scheduled at the July 16, 2013 Board meeting.  At 

that meeting Mr. Boghich updated the Board that he received correspondence from Ms. Oliver 

requesting to postpone her July 16th disability application hearing for reasons that she is still scheduled 

for medical appointments and testing and her results will not be available until after the meeting.  The 

Board granted her request.  

On February 10, 2014, Mr. Boghich sent Ms. Oliver a follow up letter requesting her additional medical 

records as none had been received to date since the Board agreed to postpone her hearing at the July 16, 

2013 meeting. 

On March 14, 2014, Mr. Boghich received a letter from Ms. Oliver which indicated that she had obtained 

legal representation to assist her with legal matters and she was still going to all scheduled appointments 

and required testing.  Ms. Oliver stated, “Once I’m fully aware that you all have been provided with my 

recent medical information, I would like to proceed with this hearing.” 

On August 24, 2015 Ms. Oliver sent Mr. Boghich a letter requested that her disability hearing be 

scheduled before the Board of Trustees. 

On February 8, 2016 Ms. Neagu sent Ms. Oliver a letter which summarized her case and the timelines.  

The letter advised her that the only additional medical records we received from her since the Board 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 8 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

agreed to postpone her hearing was a 12 page fax that was received on May 5, 2014.  The letter advised 

her that her disability retirement hearing was scheduled for the March 15, 2016 Board meeting.  

A second letter was sent to Ms. Oliver on February 19, 2016 which included copies of the original medical 

reports received from Dr. Hughes and Dr. Owi as well as the report from Lydia Storck, HR Classification 

and Testing Analyst with the Human Resources Department.   Both letters were sent via regular and 

certified mail. 

Ethelda Oliver was present and spoke on her behalf. 

Ms. Oliver stated she was dealing with physical and medical problems.  She informed the Board that Dr. 
Owi did not have all of her medical records for review at her medical examination on April 11, 2013.  She 
stated that she called Mark Boghich after the appointment and he said he forgot to send those medical 
records over.  Ms. Oliver said she called Dr. Owi back and was told that she had all of the records.  Ms. 
Oliver was concerned that Dr. Owi based her opinion solely on the medical records relating to her stroke.  
She informed the Board that she never stopped going to doctor appointments and stated she had always 
given authorization, and has been going to neurologists and can provide records. 

Ernest Carrera asked for clarification and Ms. Neagu informed him that Mr. Boghich sent two sets of 
records to Dr. Hughes, once in April 2013 and again in May of 2013.  When Mr. Carrera asked if 
everything had been given to doctor for consideration, Ms. Oliver did not concur.  Ms. Neagu reminded 
the Board that we can’t consider medical records after the employee terminates employment with the 
City of Tampa.  

Mr. Carrera asked Ms. Oliver is she believed we had all of her medical records that pre-date her 
termination date. He asked for specifics, stating the Board wanted to be fair, and asked which medical 
records were missing from her disability retirement application.  Ms. Oliver stated that when she went 
for her examination her mental state/ability was never questioned.  She said she kept telling the City she 
could not function.  She stated that Dr. Owi is not a psychiatrist, and her psychiatrist had said she could 
not function in any capacity, and that a social security physician concurred.  Ms. Oliver informed the 
Board that she has received a Social Security disability award letter dated December 3, 2015 with 
retroactive benefits payable from July 19, 2012, the last day she worked. 

Ms. Little asked if we could verify any additional information that predates her termination date for 
inclusion in the medical review.    

MOTION:  Motion was made by Sonya Little to postpone the decision, to give Ms. Oliver one final 
opportunity to provide any additional medical records which pre-date her termination date with the 
City of Tampa to the General Employees Retirement Fund.  Motion was seconded by Derwin Bright.  
Sonya Little made the motion to bring this back to the April Board Meeting.  Motion was seconded by 
Julio Muniz.  

Natasha Neagu stated she would contact Ms. Oliver to set up an appointment to review her medical 
records.  Per Sonya Little she asked that the handouts of medical information provided by Ms. Oliver be 
including as part of the record for today’s meeting.  

Karl Craig asked for clarification.  Justin Vaske clarified that our special act does not take Social Security 
disability award determinations into consideration.  Sonya Little reminded the Board that the process 
(social security) may take several years as well.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 9 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

3) Julio Ruiz-Ramos  

Natasha Neagu explained that we have received a comprehensive evaluation/medical report from Dr. 
Hughes.  It states, “Based upon review of Mr. Ruiz’s medical records, his second opinion performed by Dr. 
Owi and my evaluation today, it is this examiner’s opinion that Mr. Ruiz is incapable of usefully and 
efficiently performing any job with the City of Tampa.  Prognosis is poor and permanent in nature.”  A 
comprehensive evaluation/medical report was also received from Dr. Owi.  It states, “Based on my 
examination and review of provided medical records, it is my opinion that Mr. Ruiz is incapable of 
usefully and efficiently performing any job within the City of Tampa.”  The staff recommendation is to 
approve the disability retirement application for Mr. Ruiz-Ramos.  

MOTION:  Karl Craig made a motion to approve the disability retirement application for Mr. Ruiz-
Ramos.  Motion was seconded by Derwin Bright.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

V. FORFEITURE EDUCATION 

 

Handouts were passed out by Natasha Neagu.  She recommended that we take proactive steps to make 
sure all active employees are educated, not only on their retirement benefits, but on pension forfeitures 
as well; specifically the offenses/actions that may constitute a pension forfeiture.  Ernest Carrera agreed, 
and stated that it was important to provide retirement education to employees at all stages of their 
careers and expressed a need to take action.  Ms. Neagu updated the Board on current and upcoming 
retirement education initiatives occurring at the General Employees Retirement Fund.    

The Board engaged in a discussion about forfeiture education initiatives.   

The Board inquired about proper signage posted at the recyclable bins.  Justin Vaske stated signs are 
posted, however they may not go to the extent of addressing whether or not it is a crime.  Derwin Bright 
said that employees know that if it is on City property they are not to take anything.  Ernest Carrera 
stated that a lot of employees are not aware of the consequences.   Derwin Bright said that each 
employee signs a letter for their file indicating they are aware.  Karl Craig stated that he thought it was 
inconsistent across the City.  As we see forfeitures before the Board, a proactive effort by this Board may 
help.  Ernest Carrera asked Ms. Neagu for retirement education and forfeiture education plans to be 
brought back to the Board at a subsequent meeting.  

MOTION was made to staff by Julio Muniz to provide the Board an outline of a course of action to be 
implemented for benefits and forfeiture education.  Motion was seconded by Derwin Bright.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1) Outstanding Disability Applications 
 
Natasha Neagu updated the Board, and stated she is currently working on two outstanding disability 
retirement applications which date back to 2014 that have never been brought to the Board for a 
hearing.   Disability retirement hearings will be scheduled for these individuals at the April and May 
2016 Board meetings. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 10 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

 
2) Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit 

 
Ms. Neagu provided an overview of the scope of the audit, the procedures and results.  She updated 
the Board that approximately 25% of the population subject to the audit did not respond by the 
deadline.  Four overpayments were discovered at this stage in the audit.  Benefits would be adjusted 
for the four people to the correct amounts in accordance with Section 12(A) of Chapter 23559 of the 
Special Act of 1945.   
 
Ms. Neagu advised the Board that we currently do not have policies or procedures on overpayments 
nor do we have policies and procedures for the Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit.  She 
recommended that a second letter be sent to the non-responsive Division A survivors however 
without a policy in place we have no recourse to enforce the mandatory compliance with the audit.  
 
Justin Vaske recommended that staff bring a draft of overpayment policies and procedures to the 
next meeting. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Sonya Little for staff to bring recommendations to next meeting 
regarding the collection of overpayments.  Motion was seconded by Julio Muniz.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 

The Board discussion continued on the Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit.  Julio Muniz asked if 
second letters were sent, and if there was a time frame involved.  Justin Vaske clarified that without a 
policy or procedure in place, we cannot suspend payments.  He said that we currently have piece 
meal procedures and need to establish policies and procedures.  

MOTION:  Motion was made by Sonya Little, for staff to prepare Division A Survivor Remarriage 
Audit policies and procedures to the next Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Julio Muniz and 
Karl Craig.  MOTION CARRIED. 

3) Disability Re-Examination Audit 
 
Natasha Neagu stated that the annual disability re-examination audit is in progress and the results 
will be brought to the Board at the April 19, 2016 meeting.  
 

4) Annual Benefit Statements 
 
Ms. Neagu updated the Board that the annual benefit statement project is in progress and the staff 
just completed a 100% audit of active membership records to clean up the data.  Files were sent to 
the actuaries and the statement layout design is complete.  

VII. STAFF REPORT 

1) February 2016 Performance Report from ACG 



s. Neagu updated the Board that the total portfolio was down 0.55% for the month of 
February, compared to down 0.14% for the Policy Index.  Calendar year to date, the portfolio is 
down 4.92% versus a return of the Policy Index of negative 3.93%.  The Total Portfolio has 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 11 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

generated a 5.48% return over the trailing 5-year period, about in-line with the Policy Index (up 
5.51%) over the same time period. 
 
Ms. Neagu referred to the Staff Report (pages 14 to 18) and informed the Board that ACG will be 
back at the April meeting.  

Ernest Carrera asked about last month’s transfer of funds, and asked if the funds were invested.   
Ms. Neagu stated that the $8 Million was invested on March 1st to Wellington.  

2) DROP Rate of Return for Q4 2015 – Option 1 
 
MOTION:  Motion was made by Karl Craig to approve the DROP Option 1 Rate of Return 
(+3.32%).  Motion was seconded by Sonya Little.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

3) DROP Rate of Return for Q4 2015 – Option 2  
 
MOTION:  Motion was made by Julio Muniz to approve the DROP Option 2 Rate of Return 
(+0.01%). Motion was seconded by Karl Craig.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

4) JP Morgan Money Market Daily Rate of Return – March 2, 2016 
 
MOTION:  Motion was made by Sonya Little to approve US GOVT Money Market Fund – JP 
MORGAN (0.13%).  Motion was seconded by Karl Craig and Julio Muniz. 
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Ms. Neagu advised the Consent Agenda has been reviewed and the items listed are true, correct, and 
have been reviewed to ensure contract compliance and correctness.  
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  

Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrants, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, 
Disability Retirement, Survivor Benefits and Estate Payments……….. ................................ Handout 

 

Miscellaneous Invoices: 

1. Tampa Occupational Health Services - $1,200 .............................................................25 
2. Workhealth Occupational Medicine Clinic - #31782 - $1,050 ......................................26 
3. Tampa Occupational Health Services - $300.00 ...........................................................27 
4. Ford & Harrison - #649250 - $474.00 ...........................................................................28 
5. Ford & Harrison - #649252 - $549.00 ...........................................................................29 
6. Ford & Harrison - #649249 - $274.00 ...........................................................................30 
7. Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick - #508458 - $2,502.50 .....................................................31 
8. City of Tampa Reimbursement – (Oct. 1, 2015 – Mar. 11, 2016) - $116,685.49 .........32 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 12 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 15, 2016 

 

 

 
 

MOTION: Motion was made by Karl Craig to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion was seconded by 
Sonya Little.  MOTION CARRIED. 

IX.  ADJOURNMENT  

 
The next Forfeiture Hearing will be held at 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 29, 2016, in City Council 
Chambers. 
 
The next Regular Board meeting will be held at 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 19th, 2016, in City Council 
Chambers.   
 
There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 2:20 p.m.  
 
 
                  __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR – Natasha Neagu 

& RECORDING SECRETARY 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 13 of 43



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

FORFEITURE HEARING – Marvin Campbell 
TUESDAY – March 29, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees Present: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Derwin Bright – Trustee; Julio Muniz - Trustee; Karl Craig - 
Trustee 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu - Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  
  Justin R. Vaske - Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney; Terrie Williams - 

Accounting Operations Manager; Karencia Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III 
 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 March 29, 2016, 1:00 P.M. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to 
participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Pension Office at least 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. 

 

 
I. Roll Call       

Members Present:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman;  Derwin Bright, Trustee;  Karl  Craig, Trustee;  and Julio 
Muniz, Trustee. 
 
Members Absent:   Alan Weiner, Vice-Chairman; Sonya Little, Chief Financial Officer; Steve Kenny, 
Trustee. 
 
Let the record reflect these individuals are also present:  Natasha Neagu, General Employees’ Pension 
Plan Supervisor;  Justin R. Vaske, Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Luis Santos, 
Independent Counsel from Ford & Harrison;  Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager; 
Kimberly Marple, Employee Relations Specialist Supervisor;  Respondent Marvin Campbell;  Karencia 
Ciagala, OSS III; and Court Reporter Trish March. 
 
 

II. Respondent Statement 
Chairman, Ernest Carrera, addressed Marvin Campbell, Respondent, and asked him if he would be 
providing testimony and when did he receive his notice.  Mr. Campbell said that he would provide 
testimony, and that he received his notice near the end of February.  Luis Santos, Independent 
Counsel, advised that the client was properly noticed and confirmed the time frame.  Justin Vaske, 
Assistant City Attorney, advised the Board that they were in compliance with rules and regulations. 
Chairman Ernest Carrera advised the Respondent that this would be the only opportunity to be 
heard, and asked if he has or wanted legal counsel.  The Respondent advised that he wanted legal 
counsel.  Attorney Vaske advised him that the Board does not provide representation, and he would 
need to seek his own counsel. 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 14 of 43



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FORFEITURE HEARING – Marvin Campbell 

TUESDAY – MARCH 29, 2016 
 

 
 

 
III. MOTION 

Motion was made by Julio Muniz to postpone this hearing, for a time to be set by staff within the next 
45 days.  Motion was seconded by Derwin Bright.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

IV. Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Ernest Carrera adjourned the meeting at 1:07p.m.  

 
 
 
       __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
           PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR - Natasha Neagu 

& RECORDING SECRETARY 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 15 of 43



 Preliminary

Asset Class

Market
Value

($000s)

Actual
Allocation

(%)

Target
Allocation

(%)

Over/
Under

(%)
Total Portfolio 643,726 100.00 100.00
Equity 380,934 59.18 60.00 -0.82 55.00 65.00

     US Large Cap Equity 189,123 29.38 25.00 4.38 20.00 30.00
     US Small Cap Equity 47,271 7.34 10.00 -2.66 7.00 13.00

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending March 31, 2016

Range
Min - Max

(%)

29
.3

8%

7.
34

%

18
.4

5%

4.
01

%

29
.0

8%

6.
09

%

0.
13

% 5.
40

%

0.
12

%

25
.0

0%

10
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

5.
00

%

30
.0

0%

7.
00

%

3.
00

%

0.
00

%

0.
00

%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

US Large Cap Equity US Small Cap Equity Int'l Developed Markets 
Equity

Emerging Markets Equity Fixed Income Core Real Estate Opportunistic Real Estate Global REITs Cash and Equivalents

Actual vs. Target Allocation

Actual Allocation Target Allocation

p q y
     Int'l Developed Markets Equity 118,758 18.45 20.00 -1.55 17.00 23.00
     Emerging Markets Equity 25,782 4.01 5.00 -0.99 3.00 7.00

Fixed Income 187,201 29.08 30.00 -0.92 23.00 37.00

Real Assets 74,811 11.62 10.00 1.62 7.00 13.00

     Core Real Estate 39,199 6.09 7.00 -0.91 5.00 12.00
     Opportunistic Real Estate 837 0.13 3.00 -2.87 1.00 5.00
     Global REITs 34,774 5.40 0.00 5.40 0.00 5.00

Cash and Equivalents 781 0.12 0.00 0.12

Market
Value

($000s)

Actual
Allocation

(%)

1
Month

(%)
YTD
(%)

FYTD
(%)

1
Year
(%)

3
Years
(%)

5
Years
(%)

10
Years
(%)

Since
Inception

(%)

Total Portfolio (07/85) 643,726 100.00 5.48 0.30 3.63 -2.78 6.04 6.54 5.48 8.52
Policy Index 1 5.37 1.24 4.50 -1.52 5.97 6.58 5.45 --

1 The Policy Index consists of 30% Barclays US Aggregate, 20% MSCI EAFE, 25% Russell 1000, 10% Russell 2000, 5% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE. Prior to June 2014, the Policy Index consisted of 30% 
Barclays US Aggregate, 18% MSCI EAFE, 29% Russell 1000, 7% Russell 2000, 3% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, 3% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE.  Prior to August 2009, the Policy Index consisted of 30% 
Barclays US Aggregate, 18% MSCI EAFE, 32% Russell 1000, 8% Russell 2000, 3.5% MSCI EAFE Small Cap, 3.5% MSCI Emerging Markets, and 5% NFI ODCE net. 

 © 2016 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  1
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 16 of 43



 Preliminary

Market
Value

($000s)

Actual
Allocation

(%)

1
Month

(%)
YTD
(%)

FYTD
(%)

1
Year
(%)

3
Years
(%)

5
Years
(%)

10
Years
(%)

Since
Inception

(%)

Total Portfolio (07/85) 643,726 100.00 5.48 0.30 3.63 -2.78 6.04 6.54 5.48 8.52
Policy Index 1 5.37 1.24 4.50 -1.52 5.97 6.58 5.45 --

US Large Cap Equity (04/02) 189,123 29.38 6.52 -2.06 4.15 -2.21 12.06 11.53 7.17 7.36
S&P 500 6.78 1.35 8.49 1.78 11.82 11.58 7.01 6.41

US Small Cap Equity (01/99) 47,271 7.34 7.37 -3.11 0.76 -10.34 6.26 7.96 5.87 10.42
Russell 2000 7.98 -1.52 2.02 -9.76 6.84 7.20 5.26 7.21

Non US Equity  (03/03) 144,540 22.45 7.67 -1.40 3.18 -8.48 1.44 1.45 2.62 8.36
Non US Equity Index 2 7.93 -1.18 2.71 -8.53 1.84 1.93 2.46 8.89

Fixed Income (10/84) 187,201 29.08 2.52 4.44 3.68 0.85 1.73 3.92 5.09 6.89
Barclays US Aggregate 0.92 3.03 2.44 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.90 7.45

Real Assets (07/02) 74,811 11.62 5.56 3.19 6.82 6.34 9.52 10.08 6.49 8.48
Real Assets Composite Index 3 5.77 3.78 7.73 7.10 9.69 10.69 5.79 --

Cash and Equivalents (06/93) 781 0.12 0.03 0.11 0.16 0.43 0.25 0.26 1.36 3.04
US T-Bills 90 Day 0.05 0.07 0.10 0.12 0.07 0.08 1.16 2.78

2

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending March 31, 2016

The Non US Equity Index consists of 80% MSCI EAFE and 20% MSCI Emerging Markets Index. Prior to June 2014, the Non U.S. Equity Policy Index consisted of 75% MSCI EAFE, 12.5% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, and 12.5% MSCI Emerging Markets Index.

3 The Real Assets Composite Index consists of 50% NFI ODCE net and 50% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE Index.

 © 2016 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  2
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 17 of 43



 Preliminary

Market
Value

($000s)

Actual
Allocation

(%)

1
Month

(%)
YTD
(%)

FYTD
(%)

1
Year
(%)

3
Years
(%)

5
Years
(%)

10
Years
(%)

Since
Inception

(%)

US Large Cap Equity (04/02) 189,123 29.38 6.52 -2.06 4.15 -2.21 12.06 11.53 7.17 7.36
S&P 500 6.78 1.35 8.49 1.78 11.82 11.58 7.01 6.41

   Waddell & Reed Investment Management (12/04) 96,524 14.99 6.10 -3.28 4.27 -1.07 13.94 12.29 8.63 9.29
Russell 1000 Growth 6.74 0.74 8.11 2.52 13.61 12.38 8.28 8.42

   Dodge & Cox Incorporated  (04/02) 92,600 14.38 6.97 -0.76 4.02 -3.51 9.90 10.51 5.49 7.47
Russell 1000 Value 7.20 1.64 7.37 -1.54 9.38 10.25 5.72 6.55

US Small Cap Equity (01/99) 47,271 7.34 7.37 -3.11 0.76 -10.34 6.26 7.96 5.87 10.42
Russell 2000 7.98 -1.52 2.02 -9.76 6.84 7.20 5.26 7.21

   WTC SC 2000 (01/99) 32,961 5.12 7.37 -2.51 2.02 -8.59 10.02 10.54 8.35 10.80
Russell 2000 7.98 -1.52 2.02 -9.76 6.84 7.20 5.26 7.21

   ClariVest Asset Management (07/07) 14,309 2.22 7.37 -3.69 0.72 -8.44 10.46 9.87 -- 4.84
Russell 2000 Growth 7.66 -4.68 -0.57 -11.84 7.91 7.70 6.00 5.91

Non US Equity (03/03) 144,540 22.45 7.67 -1.40 3.18 -8.48 1.44 1.45 2.62 8.36
Non US Equity Index 2 7.93 -1.18 2.71 -8.53 1.84 1.93 2.46 8.89

Int'l Developed Markets Equity
   Marathon-London International Fund (08/15) 58,894 9.15 5.62 -3.31 2.37 -- -- -- -- -7.32

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending March 31, 2016

   Fisher Investments (07/03) 59,864 9.30 7.56 -3.26 1.56 -9.82 2.60 2.49 2.90 7.74
MSCI EAFE 6.59 -2.88 1.73 -7.87 2.68 2.76 2.27 7.07

MSCI EAFE Value 6.68 -3.84 -1.22 -12.36 1.10 1.38 1.18 -14.28
MSCI EAFE Growth 6.51 -1.96 4.61 -3.35 4.19 4.08 3.29 7.32

Emerging Markets Equity
   Aberdeen Asset Management (06/08) 25,782 4.01 12.98 8.32 9.22 -8.72 -4.45 -0.14 -- 3.53

MSCI Emerging Markets 13.26 5.75 6.53 -11.70 -4.15 -3.80 3.34 -1.96

 © 2016 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  3
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 18 of 43



 Preliminary

Market
Value

($000s)

Actual
Allocation

(%)

1
Month

(%)
YTD
(%)

FYTD
(%)

1
Year
(%)

3
Years
(%)

5
Years
(%)

10
Years
(%)

Since
Inception

(%)

Fixed Income (10/84) 187,201 29.08 2.52 4.44 3.68 0.85 1.73 3.92 5.09 6.89
Barclays US Aggregate 0.92 3.03 2.44 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.90 7.45

   Taplin, Canida & Habacht (03/97) 67,158 10.43 1.38 2.73 2.13 0.49 2.08 4.13 5.21 5.87
Barclays US Aggregate 0.92 3.03 2.44 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.90 5.54

   State Street Global Advisors (06/03) 59,178 9.19 0.92 3.04 2.46 1.97 2.51 3.80 5.01 4.36
Barclays US Aggregate 0.92 3.03 2.44 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.90 4.28

   Brandywine (02/12) 60,864 9.46 5.47 7.84 6.72 0.19 0.63 -- -- 2.54
Citigroup World Govt Bond 2.66 7.09 5.78 5.92 0.49 1.16 4.19 -0.28

Real Assets (07/02) 74,811 11.62 5.56 3.19 6.82 6.34 9.52 10.08 6.49 8.48
Real Assets Composite Index 3 5.77 3.78 7.73 7.10 9.69 10.69 5.79 --

Core Real Estate
   UBS Global Asset Management (09/00) 39,199 6.09 2.07 2.07 5.15 11.94 11.83 11.38 6.74 8.64

NFI ODCE Net 1.97 1.97 5.14 12.64 12.59 12.20 5.38 7.26

Opportunistic Real Estate
   Private Real Estate (06/04) 837 0.13 3.07 2.92 4.51 22.90 26.50 20.24 0.42 2.53

Global REITs

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund
For the Periods Ending March 31, 2016

   CBRE Clarion (07/09) 34,774 5.40 9.86 4.48 8.83 -0.17 5.96 7.98 -- 13.33
FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Dev RE 9.58 5.43 10.07 1.27 6.29 8.46 4.57 14.07

Cash and Equivalents (06/93) 781 0.12 0.03 0.11 0.16 0.43 0.25 0.26 1.36 3.04
Private Real Estate Residual Cash 57 0.01 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Dates reflect the first full month of performance.

FYTD: Fiscal year ending September.

 © 2016 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  4
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 19 of 43



1
Month

(%)
YTD
(%)

FYTD
(%)

1
Year
(%)

3
Years
(%)

5
Years
(%)

10
Years
(%)

Equity Markets - Core
S&P 500 6.78 1.35 8.49 1.78 11.82 11.58 7.01

Russell 1000 6.97 1.17 7.75 0.50 11.52 11.35 7.06
Russell 2000 7.98 -1.52 2.02 -9.76 6.84 7.20 5.26
Russell 2500 8.33 0.39 3.68 -7.31 8.16 8.58 6.47

Russell Mid Cap 8.19 2.24 5.94 -4.04 10.45 10.30 7.45
Equity Markets - Growth

S&P 500/Citigroup Growth 6.72 0.53 8.44 3.53 13.96 13.06 8.48
Russell 1000 Growth 6.74 0.74 8.11 2.52 13.61 12.38 8.28
Russell 2000 Growth 7.66 -4.68 -0.57 -11.84 7.91 7.70 6.00
Russell 2500 Growth 7.70 -2.66 1.05 -9.57 9.25 8.77 7.00

Russell Mid Cap Growth 7.14 0.58 4.72 -4.75 10.99 9.99 7.43
NASDAQ Comp 6.84 -2.75 5.40 -0.63 14.23 11.86 7.61

Equity Markets - Value
S&P 500/Citigroup Value 6.85 2.20 8.38 -0.32 9.45 9.99 5.42

Russell 1000 Value 7.20 1.64 7.37 -1.54 9.38 10.25 5.72
Russell 2000 Value 8.29 1.70 4.63 -7.72 5.73 6.67 4.42
Russell 2500 Value 8.91 3.33 6.20 -5.20 7.15 8.33 5.80

Russell Mid Cap Value 9.23 3.92 7.16 -3.39 9.88 10.52 7.23
International Markets

MSCI EAFE 6.59 -2.88 1.73 -7.87 2.68 2.76 2.27
MSCI World ex US 6.88 -1.82 2.07 -8.01 2.16 2.11 2.29

MSCI World 6.86 -0.19 5.42 -2.90 7.41 7.12 4.86
Fixed Income

BofA ML 1 Yr Treasury Note 0.14 0.36 0.19 0.40 0.29 0.32 1.74
BofA ML High Yield Master II 4.42 3.25 1.01 -3.99 1.75 4.71 6.85
Barclays Intermediate Agg 0.58 2.31 1.79 2.20 2.14 3.11 4.53

Barclays US Aggregate 0.92 3.03 2.44 1.96 2.50 3.78 4.90
Barclays Intermediate G/C 0.72 2.45 1.74 2.06 1.83 3.01 4.34

Barclays US Credit 2.52 3.92 3.38 0.93 2.86 5.00 5.70

Market Overview
For the Periods Ending March 31, 2016

 © 2016 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  5
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 20 of 43



City of Tampa

General Employees Retirement Fund

Cash Flow Projection
 

 

DESCRIPTION Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16

Beginning Balance: 591,829$             10,351,288$      6,452,952$      6,319,100$     428,181$          5,288,463$   724,869$           (2,911,582)$   (7,155,130)$          

RECEIPTS

EE Contributions - City 6,023                   3,440                 4,088               3,065              3,288                2,853            2,853                 2,853             2,853                    

EE Contributions - County 368                      368                    368                  368                 647                   819               647                    647                647                       

ER Contributions - City 13,254,983          -                     -                   -                  -                    -                -                     -                 -                        

ER Contributions - County 634                      542                    542                  542                 952                   1,205            952                    952                952                       

Transfers from GW Capital Liquidation -                      -                     -                   1,000,000       16,907,250       -                -                     -                 -                        

Distributions from Fidelity Real Estate Growth Fund -                      -                     -                   15,413            -                    -                57,097               -                 -                        

Check Deposited 398                 728               

Rebates, Settlements, Misc. 6,207                   4,854                 2,357               1,110              381                   4,187            2,000                 2,000             2,000                    

Interest Received 35                        52                      92                    160                 182                   -                -                     -                 -                        

Total Receipts 13,268,250          9,257                 7,448               1,021,057       16,912,700       9,792            63,549               6,452             6,452                    

DISBURSEMENTS

Pension Benefits (2,951,331)          (2,939,273)         -                   (5,935,099)      (3,002,731)        (3,042,932)    (3,100,000)         (3,100,000)     (3,100,000)            

Taxes (290,661)             (288,186)            -                   (589,011)         (297,085)           (313,637)       (350,000)            (350,000)        (350,000)               

Vendors (206,460)             (680,134)            (387,866)         (752,602)           (268,508)       (250,000)            (800,000)        (250,000)               

Quarterly DROP Payouts (60,339)               -                     (141,300)          -                  -                    (948,309)       -                     -                 (2,700,000)            

Investment Mgr Funding - Wellington (8,000,000)        

Total Disbursements (3,508,791)          (3,907,593)         (141,300)          (6,911,976)      (12,052,418)      (4,573,386)    (3,700,000)         (4,250,000)     (6,400,000)            

Ending Balance 10,351,288$        6,452,952$        6,319,100$      428,181$        5,288,463$       724,869$      (2,911,582)$       (7,155,130)$   (13,548,678)$        

Notes:

JP Morgan did not send the Dec. 31, 2015 wire transfers of $3,128,472 and $289,209 as instructed.  The wires were held up by the cash processing team and sent out on Jan. 4, 2016.

ACTUALS PROJECTION

 
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 21 of 43



City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

Preliminary as of April 11, 2016 Market Value

% of Total

Fund Target Value Target %

$ Value

Over/Under

Target

Proposed

Rebalance

(Cash Increase)

Rebalanced

Value

Rebalanced

Mix

Total Equity $376,781,058 58.93% $383,648,963 60.00% ($6,867,905) $0 $376,781,058 58.93%

Waddell & Reed $96,263,545 15.05% $79,926,867 12.50% $16,336,677 $0 $96,263,545 15.05%

Dodge & Cox $91,624,344 14.33% $79,926,867 12.50% $11,697,477 $0 $91,624,344 14.33%

U.S. Large Cap Equity Total $187,887,889 29.38% $159,853,735 25.00% $28,034,154 $0 $187,887,889 29.38%

ClariVest $14,166,912 2.22% $15,985,373 2.50% ($1,818,461) $0 $14,166,912 2.22%

New Small Cap Value Manager $303 0.00% $15,985,373 2.50% ($15,985,070) $0 $303 0.00%

Wellington (closed)** $30,697,071 4.80% $31,970,747 5.00% ($1,273,675) $0 $30,697,071 4.80%

U.S. Small Cap Equity Total $44,864,287 7.02% $63,941,494 10.00% ($19,077,207) $0 $44,864,287 7.02%

Marathon-London Intl Fund* $58,893,982 9.21% $63,941,494 10.00% ($5,047,512) $0 $58,893,982 9.21%

Fisher $59,353,104 9.28% $63,941,494 10.00% ($4,588,390) $0 $59,353,104 9.28%

Aberdeen* $25,781,796 4.03% $31,970,747 5.00% ($6,188,951) $0 $25,781,796 4.03%

Non-U.S. Equity Total $144,028,882 22.53% $159,853,735 25.00% ($15,824,853) $0 $144,028,882 22.53%

Total Real Assets $74,585,967 11.66% $63,941,494 10.00% $10,644,473 ($3,500,000) $71,085,967 11.12%

Value/Opportunistic Real Estate* $837,225 0.13% $19,182,448 3.00% ($18,345,223) $0 $837,225 0.13%

CBRE Clarion $34,549,615 5.40% $0 0.00% $34,549,615 ($3,500,000) $31,049,615 4.86%

UBS Trumbull* $39,199,127 6.13% $44,759,046 7.00% ($5,559,919) $0 $39,199,127 6.13%

Total Fixed Income (including cash) $188,047,914 29.41% $191,824,482 30.00% ($3,776,568) $3,500,000 $191,547,914 29.96%

Taplin, Canida & Habacht $67,223,253 10.51% $63,941,494 10.00% $3,281,759 $0 $67,223,253 10.51%

Brandywine* $60,864,450 9.52% $63,941,494 10.00% ($3,077,044) $0 $60,864,450 9.52%

SSgA* $59,178,403 9.26% $63,941,494 10.00% ($4,763,091) $0 $59,178,403 9.26%

Fixed Income Total $187,266,106 29.29% $191,824,482 30.00% ($4,558,376) $0 $187,266,106 29.29%

Cash and Equivalents $724,710 0.11% $0 0.00% $724,710 $3,500,000 $4,224,710 0.66%

Private Real Estate Residual Cash $57,098 0.01% $0 0.00% $57,098 $0 $57,098 0.01%

City Contribution $0 0.00% $0 0.00% $0 $0 $0 0.00%

Cash and Equivalents Total $781,808 0.12% $0 0.00% $781,808 $3,500,000 $4,281,808 0.67%

Total Portfolio $639,414,939 100.00% $639,414,939 100.00% $0 $0 $639,414,939 100.00%

*Market Value as of 3/31/16

**Market Value as of 2/29/16

© 2015 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved
Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 22 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 23 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 24 of 43



 

LONGEVITY RETIREMENTS

Employee Employee Date of Hire Separation

Number Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department
47781-00 Frank Greco Jr. 7/27/1953 12/28/2004 3/4/2016 11 2 Planning & Development

32792-00 Fred Russell 4/29/1956 11/4/1985 4/2/2016 30 5 Contract Administration

50023-00 Jesus Sanchez 6/16/1950 12/14/2009 3/26/2016 6 3 Public Works

DROP APPLICATION

Employee Employee Date of Hire Separation

Number Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

20775-00 Willie Kennedy Jr. 10/17/1955 10/5/1987 2/13/2016 28 4 Solid Waste

DROP TO LONGEVITY

Employee Employee Date of Hire Exit Drop

Number Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

36643-00 Charles Cluck 12/11/1989 12/11/1989 3/4/2016 19 6 Wastewater

46195-00 David Coleman 10/10/1952 12/16/2002 3/31/2016 11 8 Public Works

26258-00 Camille Fidrych 11/16/1948 10/1/1979 3/31/2016 30 0 Technology & Innovation

25661-00 Henry Henley 10/12/1960 2/25/1980 3/15/2016 30 0 Parks & Recreation

23390-00 Raymond Menendez 5/4/1954 2/6/1978 3/29/2016 30 0 Water

08286-00 Rene Rodriguez 9/20/1947 10/1/1982 3/26/2016 28 6 Water

35678-00 Karen Sims 5/6/1949 12/5/1988 3/11/2016 23 0 Technology & Innovation

29189-00 Harry Smith 4/20/1951 7/6/1982 3/26/2016 30 10 Water

DEFERRED TO LONGEVITY RETIREMENTS

Employee Employee Date of Hire  Separation

Number Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

21254-00 Robert Degennaro 4/14/1954 5/18/1981 5/18/1996 14 11 Parks & Recreation

34274-00 Stephen Foster 4/27/1954 6/22/1987 2/22/2003 15 8 Water

25230-00 Ann Hart 3/18/1954 5/15/2000 11/26/2007 7 4 Growth Management & 

Development Services
47813-00 Paul Preuss 3/29/1954 2/14/2005 10/23/2013 8 5 Planning & Development

DISABILITY RETIREMENT

Employee Employee Date of Hire  Separation

Number Name Birth Date Date Yrs Mos Department

44476-00 Julio Ruiz-Ramos 7/9/1972 12/14/1997 3/25/2015 17 3 Solid Waste

SURVIVOR BENEFITS Date of

Number Spouse Decedent Death Division  

00045-01 Eunice Andrews Kenneth Andrews 3/4/2016 A

05948-01 Carol Dudinetz John Dudinetz 3/7/2016 A

02504-01 Julia Fernandez Joe Fernandez 3/6/2016 A

31686-01 MaryLou Geis Jeffrey Geis 1/29/2015 B

31858-01 Johan Moody Norma Moody 3/30/2016 B

ESTATE PAYMENTS

Employee Date of

Number Beneficiary Decedent Death

24027-80 James Anderson Thomas Anderson 3/8/2016

00045-80 Eunice Andrews Kenneth Andrews 3/4/2016

08162-80 Davene Crum Peter Williams 2/13/2016

05948-80 Carol Dudinetz John Dudinetz 3/7/2016

21876-80 Farris Gregory Rodney Gregory 3/2/2016

31858-80 Johan Moody Norma Moody 3/30/2016

20019-80 Joseph Noriega Fernando Noriega Jr. 2/8/2016

20019-81 Linda O'Connor Fernando Noriega Jr. 2/8/2016

LUMP SUM DEATH BENEFIT

Employee Date of

Number Beneficiary Decedent Death

16907-80 Estate of James Gantt James Gantt 9/30/2015

Creditable Service

Creditable Service

City of Tampa 

General Employees Retirement Fund

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments

Consent Agenda

April 19, 2016

Creditable Service

Creditable Service

Creditable Service

Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 25 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 26 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 27 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 28 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 29 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 30 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 31 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 32 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 33 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 34 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 35 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 36 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 37 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 38 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 39 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 40 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 41 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 42 of 43



Board of Trustees Agenda Package, April 19, 2016 Page 43 of 43




